I N THE UNI TED STATES DI STRI CT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DI STRI CT OF PENNSYLVAN A

UNI TED STATES OF AVERI CA : CRI M NAL ACTI ON
V.
JAVES CARSTARPHEN : NO 05- 467

VEMORANDUM AND ORDER

McLaughlin J. July 28, 2008

A federal grand jury returned an indictnent on August
18, 2005, charging Janes Carstarphen with conspiracy, in
violation of 18 U S.C. 8§ 371; armed carjacking, in violation of
18 U.S.C. 8§ 2119; kidnaping, in violation of 18 U.S.C. 8§ 1201;
carrying, and aiding and abetting the carrying of, a firearm
during and in relation to a crinme of violence, in violation of 18
US C 88 924(c)(1) and (2); and possession of a firearmby a
convicted felon, in violation of 18 U.S.C. 8 992(g)(1), arising
out of the gunpoint abduction of a wonman and her autonobile from
Phi | adel phi a, Pennsyl vania, to Canden, New Jersey, on July 16,
2005.

The defendant pled guilty to the indictnent on Apri
19, 2006. On March 14, 2007, the District Court inposed a
sentence of 205 nonths inprisonnment, a termof five years
supervi sed rel ease, a fine of $500, and a special assessnent of
$500. The defendant did not appeal his sentence. The defendant

filed a notion to vacate, set aside and correct sentence under



28 U.S.C. 8 2255 on April 24, 2008. He filed the correct form
for his 8 2255 notion on May 12, 2008.

The defendant nakes four clains in his 8§ 2255 petition:
def ense counsel were ineffective because they failed to nake a
nmotion for a conpetency hearing; the Court erred because it did
not on its own notion order a conpetency hearing; the Court erred
in sentencing the defendant because it did not cross-reference
t he robbery guidelines; and, the Court erred in inposing a sentence
under both 18 U.S.C. 8§ 922(g)(1) and 18 U S.C. 8§ 924(c)(1) for the

sane firearm The Court will deny the notion.?

Di scussi on

The governnent argues that the defendant’s petition is
untinmely because it was filed on April 24, 2008, over thirteen
nmont hs after the defendant was sentenced on March 14, 2007. The
government is correct that the defendant’s notion is untinely
unl ess equitable tolling is appropriate. The defendant has
argued that there were extraordi nary circunstances that should
allow himto file his 8 2255 notion past the one year tine

period. The Court wll assunme for purposes of this notion that

! On June 9, 2008, the defendant filed a notion for
di scovery related to his § 2255 notion, requesting his
prelimnary hearing transcripts, transcripts fromthe status of
counsel hearings, his DYFS records, Dr. Tepper’s full report, and
transcripts fromhis sentencing hearing. The governnent produced
voluntarily the records in it possession: the Tepper report; sone
FDC nedi cal records; and two letters froma DYFS social worker.
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equitable tolling is appropriate and will consider the nerits of

t he petition.

A The | ssue of Conpetency

The defendant clainms that his two counsel were
ineffective in failing to request a conpetency hearing and that

the Court erred in not sua sponte ordering a conpetency hearing.?

Whet her or not counsel will be considered “ineffective” for
habeas purposes is governed by the two-part test articul ated by

the Suprenme Court in Strickland v. Washi ngton, 466 U. S. 668

(1984). Under Strickland, the defendant nust prove that (1)

counsel’s representation fell bel ow an objective standard of
reasonabl eness; and (2) that there is a reasonable probability
that, but for counsel’s error, the result would have been

different. |d. at 687-96; see also United States v. Ni no, 878

F.2d 101 (3d Cir. 1989).
In evaluating the first prong, a Court nust be “highly
deferential” to counsel’s decision and there is a “strong

presunption” that counsel’s performance was reasonable. United

2 The defendant originally was represented by Benjamn

Cooper, Esq. After he pled guilty, the defendant noved to have

M. Cooper withdrawn as counsel. M. Carstarphen filed a letter
with the Court in which he clearly explained that he did not want
M . Cooper representing himanynore because they had irreconcil able
differences. In that letter, the defendant conplained that he was
i nnocent of the charges. M. Cooper was allowed to w thdraw and

Ni al ena Caravasos, Esg., was appointed to represent M. Carstarphen
at sentenci ng.



States v. Kauffrman, 109 F.3d 186 (3d G r. 1997)(citing

Strickland). Counsel nust have wide |atitude in naking tactical

decisions. Strickland, 466 U S. at 689. The defendant nust

overcone the presunption that, under the circunstances, the
chal | enged action m ght be considered sound trial strategy.

United States v. Gray, 878 F.2d 702 (3d G r. 1989).

The conduct of counsel should be evaluated on the facts
of the particular case, viewed as of the tine of the conduct.
Strickland, 466 U. S at 690. The Third Grcuit, quoting
Strickland, has cautioned that: the range of reasonable
prof essi onal judgnents is wide and courts nust take care to avoid
illegitimte second-guessing of counsel’s strategic decisions
fromthe superior vantage point of hindsight. Gay, 878 F.2d at
711.

The defendant argues that counsel had know edge of “a
mass array of docunments show ng that he was inconpetent.” The
Court is not aware of and the defendant does not direct the Court
to any docunents questioning his nmental conpetency. The Court
did sign an order allow ng a psychol ogi cal evaluation of M.
Carstarphen prior to sentencing. M. Caravasos retained Alan M
Tepper for a psychol ogi cal evaluation. There was never any
suggestion from M. Tepper that M. Carstarphen was i nconpetent

to proceed before the Court. In her sentencing nenorandum Ms.



Caravasos did describe the defendant’s nmental difficulties in her
request for a nore | enient sentence.

The Court never had any doubt as to the defendant’s
conpetency. The defendant’s responses to questions and conduct
during the guilty plea colloquy, his letter to the Court asking
for the withdrawal of M. Cooper as counsel and the appoi nt nent
of new counsel, and his sentencing letters to the Court and to
the victimevidenced a clear understanding of the nature of the
proceedi ngs, his role in those proceedings, and the role of the

ot her participants.

B. O her | ssues

The governnent argues that the claimthat the Court
used the wong sentencing guidelines is not cognizable under 8§
2255. That does appear to be the view of many Courts of Appeals
t hat have considered this issue. 1In any event, the defendant’s
argunment is without merit. The guideline calculations were
correct.

The defendant’s final argunment is that his sentence
under both 18 U. S.C. 88 924(c) (1) and 922(g) (1) violated double
j eopardy. Congress expressly authorized cunul ati ve puni shnments
in this case. The statute unanmbi guously states that the term of
i npri sonment inposed under 8 924 (c¢) nust run consecutively to

any other termof inprisonnment inposed on the defendant. In any



event, 88 922(g) and 924(c) constitute separate offenses under

Bl ockburger v. United States, 284 U S. 299, 304 (1932). Each

requi res proof of a fact that the other does not. They were
designed to deter and punish two different types of antisocial
conduct. There was no violation of the double jeopardy clause in
this case.

An appropriate order foll ows.



I N THE UNI TED STATES DI STRI CT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DI STRI CT OF PENNSYLVAN A

UNI TED STATES OF AVERI CA : CRI M NAL ACTI ON
V.
JAVES CARSTARPHEN : NO 05- 467
ORDER

AND NOW this 28th day of July, 2008, upon
consi deration of defendant’s notion to vacate, set aside, or
correct sentence by a person in federal custody under 28 U. S. C
8§ 2255 (Docket No. 103), and the governnent’s opposition thereto,
| T I'S HEREBY ORDERED that said notion is DENIED for the reasons
stated in a nmenorandum of today’'s date. |IT IS FURTHER ORDERED
that a certificate of appealability is denied because the
def endant has not made a substantial showi ng of the denial of a

constitutional right.

BY THE COURT:

/s/ Mary A. MlLaughlin
MARY A. McLAUGHLI N, J.




